
Union County Board of County Commissioners 

15 Northeast 1 st Street, Lake Butler, FL 32054 · Phone: 386•496•4241 • Fax: 386•496·4810 

AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 20, 2023 

6:00 P.M. 

NOTE: If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or 
hearing, He or she will need a record for the proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim record is made

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

Meeting Called to Order ....................................................................................................... Chairman 

Invocation and Pledge ........................................................................................... Commissioner Croft 

Public Comments 

Approval of Consent Agenda .......................... ......................................................................... Chairman 
• Finance Report
• Minutes February 20, 20�3 Regular Meeting, Planning & Zoning Public Hearing, Board of Adjustments

Public Hearing and Marchi 1, 2023 Workshop

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

Lake Butler FFA Ag Issues Team .......................................................................................... Chairman 

Consideration of Updated Purchasing Policy ..................................................................... Jimmy Williams 

Consideration of SHIP Local Housing Assistance Plan & Sub-Recipient Agreement. ................. Jimmy Williams 

Consideration of Scrap Tire Agreement with Global Tire Recycling ......................................... Jimmy Williams 

9. Consideration of National Healthcare Decisions Day Proclamation .......................................... Wendy Crews 

10. Discussion of Guardrail on CR 241 .................................................................................. Jimmy Williams 

11. Consideration of Managed Services Amendment #1 with Brady Clark, New River Technology ..... Jimmy Williams 

12. co1sideration of Vblunteer Firefighter Incentive Proposal. ........................................................... Toby Witt 

13. Discussion of Horseback Riding and Recreation Trails ......................................................... Jimmy Tallman 

14. Report'trom County Coordinator, Jimmy Williams and Department Heads
Kim Hayes, Solid Waste Director 
Shelton Arnold, Jr., Road Department 
Mary Brown, Public Library 
Toby Witt, EMS Director 
Jim DeValerio, Extension Director 

15. Rebort Kellie Hendricks Rhoades, Clerk of Courts and Comptroller ........................................ Clerk Rhoades 

16. Report from Russell A. Wade 111, County Attorney ............................................................... Attorney Wade 

17. Report from County Commissibners
Ryan Perez, District 1 

1 

Channing Dobbs, District 2 
Jimmy Tallman, District 3 
Mac Johns, District 4 
Willie Croft, District 5 

18. Adjournment

BOARD MEMBERS: 
RY /\N PEREZ, Dish·ict 1 • CHANNJl\:G DOBBS, District 2 • JIMMY TALLMAN, Di�trict 1 • MAC JOI INS Dish·ict-i • WILLIE CROFr, District 5 

KELLIE HENDRICKS RHOADES 
Clerk of Court/Comptroller 

RUSSEi.i. WADE 
County Attornpy 



1. Minutes:

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

UNION COUNTY, FLORIDA 

CONSENT AGENDA 

MARCH 20, 2023 

• February 20, 2023 Regular Meeting

• February 20, 2023 Planning & Zoning Board Public Hearing

• February 20, 2023 Board of Adjustments Public Hearing

• March 1, 2023 Workshop

2. Finance Report

• Checks 
1
submitted for approval of payment

I• Additional bills submitted after processing 



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
SERVING AS THE PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 

UNION COUNTY, FLORIDA 
PUBLIC HEARING 

FEBRUARY 20, 2023 
I I 

NOTE: If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, 
he or she will need a record for the proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim record is made. 

PRESIDING: Ryan Perez, Chair 

RECORDING: Kellie Hendricks Rhoades, Clerk of Courts & Comptroller
I 

ATTENDING: Commissioner Willie Croft; Commissioner Channing Dobbs; Commissioner Mac Johns; 
Commissioner James A. Tallman; James Williams, County Coordinator; Dianne Hannon, Board 
Secretary; Russ Wade, County Attorney; Pamela Woodington, Finance Director 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 

Chairman Perez called the hearing �o order at 5:50 pm. Commissioner Dobbs offered the invocation and led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Chairman Perez called for any general public comments, and hearing none, he closed the floor to public comments. 

Chairman Perez called for public comments in favor of a petition by Alan Rau to permit a private club is RSF/MH-1 
zoning. Mr. Rau approached the Board, stating he would like to put in electric and sewer hook-ups for RVs for he 
and friends to camp in so that they may garden and hunt on the property. 

Commissioner Dobbs stated that he has no issue with granting this request, but is concerned for future use given 
RVs throu�hout,the cou1ty that are generating a cost but not paying taxes or special assessments. Mr. Rau was not
opposed tf paying the costs charged by the county. Commissioner Tallman stated that there are a lot of unknown 
facts about RVs in general, and the Board should take up the issue in a workshop. 

Hearing no further comments in support, he called for any comments opposed to the application. Hearing none, he 
closed the floor to public comments. 

Chairman Perez stated the Board will hold a workshop to address the issue. 
' 

Chair Perez adjourned the hearing by general consent at 6:10 pm. 

APPROVED: ATTEST: 

Ryan Perez, Chair Kellie Hendricks Rhoades, Clerk & Comptroller 

Page 1 of 1 



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
pERVING AS THE PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 
! UNION COUNTY, FLORIDA

PUBLIC HEARING 
FEBRUARY 20, 2023 

NOTE: If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, 
he or she will need a record for the proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim record is made. 

PRESIDING: Ryan Perez, Chair 

RECORDING: Kellie Hendricks Rhoades, Clerk of Courts & Comptroller 

ATTENDING: Commissioner Willie Croft; Commissioner Channing Dobbs; Commissioner Mac Johns; 
Commissioner James A. Tallman; James Williams, County Coordinator; Dianne Hannon, Board 
Secretary\ Russ Wade, County Attorney; Pamela Woodington, Finance Director 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 

Chairman Perez called the hearing to order at 6:09 pm. Commissioner Dobbs offered the invocation and led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Chairman Perez called for public comments in favor of an application by Jimmy Matthew, and JR Davis asked about 
fencing a�ound the property. Hearing no further comments in support, he called for any comments opposed to the 
application. Hearing none, he closed the floor to public comments. 

Chairman Perez called for action by,the Board. 

Commissioner Tallman noted that the application is to rezone to industrial, but that the property is only .81 acres 
and that he would like Mr. Matthew to be present to answer questions. He asked if the issue can be discussed in 
the workshop on March 1, and Attorney Wade answered that general discussion would be allowed, and not 
consideration during a workshop. 

A consensus was made to table the matter. 

Chair Perez adjourned the hearing by general consent at 6:14 pm. 

APPROVED: ATTEST: 

Ryan Perez, Chair Kellie Hendricks Rhoades, Clerk & Comptroller 

Page 1 of 1 



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
UNION COUNTY, FLORIDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 20, 2023 

I 

NOTE: If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, 
he or she will n'eed a record for the proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim record is made. 

PRESIDINt Ryan Perez, Chair 

RECORDING: 

ATTENDING: 

Kellie Hendricks Rho(des, Clerk of Courts & Comp\roller

Commissioner Willie Croft; Commissioner Channing Dobbs; Commissioner Mac Johns; 
Commissioner James A. Tallman; James Williams, County Coordinator; Dianne Hannon, Board 
Secretary; Russ Wade, County Attorney; Pamela Woodington, Finance Director 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
Chair Perez called the meeting to order at 6:14 pm. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Shane Bennett approached the Board about an issue with property that adjoins his father's property in Raiford. 
He stated that the neighboring landowner was creating a nuisance and public health hazard by dumping garbage 
on his proPierty., There w�s discussion about the issue among the Board members and Mr. Bennett. Commissioner

Dobbs mqved to direct Mr. Williams to reach out to the Health Department, the Sheriffs Office and the 
Department of Environment Protection and report back to the Board. Commissioner Croft seconded the motion, 
and it passed unanimously. Additional discussion ensued regarding code enforcement, and Chairman Perez stated 
that a workshop on the issue should be held at a later date. 

I 

Cindy North presented a letter to the Board to John Trowell from the Suwannee River Water Management District 
' 

regarding dumping in the wetlands on his property, and expressed concerns about the hazardous waste on his 
property bn CR-796. She also asked about EMS services for the Boat Races for the City of Lake Butler, expressing 
that obligating an ambulance for this event would remove an ambulance from service for the public. Toby Witt, 
EMS Director, stated that for specirl event� we would charge the organization the cost of adding an additional 
ambulance for that event. 

David Ward asked about the Fire Station in Providence, and expressed that he would like to see construction start. 
There was discussion about the sales tax that was passed, and Attorney Wade answered that the tax was not 
eligible to be.enacted due to the lac'k of the County having an OPPAGA study done. Commissioner Johns answered 
that he was not in favor of the fire station originally, but that he has met with designers and money has been 
appropriated from the State. He said the designed has had a survey done and should have building plans back in 
another week. Commissioner Johns said he is hoping to put out bids in the next Board meeting. Mr. Ward asked 
if it will be staffed 24/7, and Commissioner Johns answered that it will not be at this time. 

Ralph Dou�las �pproachkd the Board with Jim Harrell regarding the Board stopping maintenance of cemeteries. 
Mr. Harrell said that he is the Vice President of Elzey Chapel cemetery, and they can't manage it without the 
County's help, and that Elzey Chapel has paid $2,000 a year. Chairman Perez said in a previous meeting that the 
County is struggling to maintain roadways due to inmate labor shortage, and Commissioner Tallman said if we 
were to get inmate labor back, we could go back to mairitaining cemeteries. He personally volunteered to help 
clean Elzey C�apel Cemetery. He agreed that this is a service the County would like to provide, but can't without 
the inmate labor force. Chairman Perez said he is no longer a teacher, but offered the idea that cleaning cemeteries 
be a prog1ram for high school students to receive community service hours, and he would be willing to facilitate 
this. 

I 

Hearing no further requests to spel, Chairman Perez close the floor to public comments. 
Page 1 of 4 



February 20, 2023 
Regular Meeting 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
Commissioner Tallman moved to approve the consent agenda presented by Clerk Rhoades, which included the 
Finance Report with additional bills and minutes. Commissioner Johns seconded the motion. It passed 
unanimou�ly. 

SUWANNEE RIVER WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
Mary Diaz, an engineer with the SRWMD informed the commission about meetings being held this week regarding 
the Flood Risk Map Review, and advised that this is important as it can effect Flood Zone Designations and 
homeowners insurance. Chairman Perez asked Ms. Diaz about flooding issues previously discussed in the Hidden 
Oaks subdivision, and Ms. Diaz answered that she doesn't know the outcome. Chairman Perez asked her to please 
find a solution, and she said she will ask someone to reach out to the County. 

RESOLUTION 2023-01 
Commissioner Dobbs moved to adopt Resolution 2023-01, regarding accepting SCOP funding for the CR-229 
project, including bridge replacem�nt. Commissioner Tallman seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously. 

RESOLUTION 2023-02 
Commissioner Dobbs moved to adopt Resolution 2023-02, regarding additional SCOP funding for the CR-229 
project. Commissioner Croft seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously. 

RESOLUTION 2023-03 
Commissioner Dobbs moved to adopt Resolution 2023-03, declaring support of Union County being designated 
as a Rural Area of Opportunity. Commissioner Croft seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously. 

RESOLUTION 2023-04 
Attorney Wade indicated that the purpose of this resolution is to flush out the authorities of the County 
Coordinat0r, adding this resolution would allow that contracts approved by the Board would be able to be signed 
by the coJnty Coordinator, and that documents regarding road projects could be signed by the County Coordinator 
if there is no additional expense incurred by the County. Commissioner Tallman said that he doesn't foresee any 
road projects that are not 100% grant funded, and would like to see that in the language. Commissioner Johns 
questioned why the change is needed. Mr. Williams answered that this would alleviate time constraints, by 
allowing him to sign the contract from a Board decision. Clerk Rhoades added that when the Board accepts a bid, 
a contract comes back from the winning contractor, and there should be someone designated to sign that contract 
so that it �oesn't have to wait until the next month's Board meeting. Commissioner Tallman said there needs to 
be a way to move things forward. Melissa Hendrix suggested the chair be designated to sign off on these things. 
Additional discussion ensued, and c

1

ommissioner Johns moved to designate the chair to sign off on the items in the
resolution. The motion died for a lack of second, and the consensus was made to table the matter until the 
workshop with Ginger Delegal. 

LEASE WITH UNION COUNTY-LAKE BUTLER RIDING CLUB 
Attorney Wade advised the Board that the Riding Club has asked for a new lease with the same terms because 
they have changed their name. Commissioner Tallman moved to approve the new lease. Commissioner Croft 
seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously. 

OTHER BUSINESS 
Commissioner Johns moved, and Commissioner Croft seconded, to accept a Task Order for Engineering Services 
for Courthouse Security upgrades for $35,000 from North Florida Professional Services. The motion passed 
unanimourly. Mr. Willia1ms noted that NFPS is on the County's continuing services contract.

Mr. Williams presented a task order for courthouse parking design. Clerk Rhoades noted that this is not budgeted 
for, and the Board would need to make a budget amendment if accepting the task order. Commissioner Johns 
moved, and Commissioner Croft seconded, to accept a Task Order for Engineering Services for Courthouse 

Page 2 of 4 



February �o, 2023 
Regular Meeting 

parking design for $11,500 from �orth Florida Professional Services, and a budget amendment to decrease 
ending fund balance and increase courthouse repairs and maintenance. The motion passed unanimously. 

Commissioner Johns stated that he spoke to Murray Ford to move the process along to purchase the needed 
county vehicles. Purchase orders in the amount totaling $313,316 were presented. Commissioner Tallman moved
to purchase the vehicles and make the appropriate budget amendment for the funds to be spent from the 
General Fund Special Account #2. Commissioner Johns seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 

Commissioner Johns moved to pay Tom Jenkins Electric for work done at OJ Phillips in accordance with policy. 
Commissioner Tallman seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 

Mr. Williams stated that an additional $75,000 is needed above the FRDP Grant amount of $165,000 to complete 
the proje9 due to price ihcreases. He stated that $30,000 was designated in May, and needs an additional $45,000 

now. Commissioner Johns clarified with Mr. Williams that the additional $45,000 will complete the project. Mrs. 
Woodington indicated that each portion of the project has a budget for the grant funding, and Kimley-Horn has 
handled that reporting. Commissioner Dobbs moved to amend the budget by appropriating $45,000 from the
General Fund Special Account #2 to the improvements at OJ Phillips Complex. Commissioner Johns seconded 

I 

the motion and it passed unanimously. 
I 

New extersion agent "Mr. Jim" introduced himself, and will start April 3. 

Mr. Williams said that he has met with representatives in Tallahassee, and is pushing for a recurring Payment in 
Lieu of Taxes for homes on state la

1
d. 

He said a vulnerability study grant was awarded, and the Toxic Round-Up will be on March 18. He also introduced 
a new page on the County's website which is a status update of major projects. 

Shelton Arnold, Road Superintendent, asked the Board when he should cut off maintenance to cemeteries, and a 
consensus was made for the end of March. 

Mary Brown, Library Director, told the Board that the Library needs to close on March 10-11 for inventory. 

Toby Witt, EMS Director, said the county was awarded a community paramedic grant, which will be a $50,000 

offset to salaries already budgeted, which is to service repeat callers such as fall risks, to alleviate the burden that 
they place on the service. He has sent a memo to staff regarding the training policy, and has also met with DOC, 
and foundjthat the Couniy has a revenue opportunity there and is going to work out a plan to look at those options 
to expand services and increase the bottom line. He said that Volunteer Fire Fighters have went above and beyond, 
and that Paul McDavid is working on grants for the fire department, is reforming the VFD's 501(c)(3), and is 
researching paying a stipend to volunteer responders. 

Clerk Rhoades discussed the HVAC system of the courthouse, stating that the air handler in the finance department 
has been patuhed, but is 20 years old with an expected life of 15 years, and needs to be replaced. The cost estimate 
to replacT it is $30-40 thousand. There are twelve air handlers of the chilled water system throughout the 
courthouse, all with the same life expectancy and age. She stated that WW Gay advised that there are newer ways 
to handle it, and Mr. Williams stated he would put out an RFQ for re-engineering the air handling system in the 
courthouse. I 

Attorney Wade directed the Board's attention to the fact that he was asked to write a letter to the DEP regarding 
the continued testing of the old landfill. He found that the permit was issued, and it was accepted. There was 
much discussion among the Board .with Tim Culley, the county's engineer. Commissioner Tallman moved, and
Commissioner Johns seconded to continue monitoring in compliance with the permit. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

Page 3 of 4 



February �O, 2023 
Regular Meeting 

Commissioner Dobbs moved, and Commissioner Croft seconded, to approve contracts submitted for a 911 

Mapping Grant Acceptance and also a construction contract with Ajax for the new EOC building, not to exceed 

$2.9 million. The motion passed unanimously. 

Commissioner Tallman announced the Union County Livestock Association would be hosting an agricultural fair on 
March 14�18, and invited all to attend. 

Chairman Perez adjourned the meeting at 8:58 pm. 

APPROVED: ATTEST: 

Ryan Perez, Chair Kellie Hendricks Rhoades, Clerk & Comptroller 

Page 4 of 4 



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
UNION COUNTY, FLORIDA 

WORKSHOP 
MARCH 1, 2023 

NOTE: If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, 
he or she w:ill need a record for the proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim record is made. 

PRESIDINJ Chairman Ryan Perez 

RECORDING: Kellie Hendricks Rhoades, Clerk of Courts & Comptroller 

ATTENDING: Vice-Chairman Dobbs; Commissioner Willie Croft; Commissioner Mac Johns; Commissioner James 
Tallman; Jimmy Williams, County Coordinator; Pam Woodington, Finance Director; Dianne Hannon, Board 
Secretary; Russ Wade, County Attorney 

CALL TO Cj>RDER 

Chairman Perez called the workshop to order at 5:00 pm. Commissioner Dobbs offered the invocation and led Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Chairman Perez welcomed the public and called for public comments. Hearing none, he closed the floor to public 
comments. 

FLORIDA ASSOCIATON OF COUNTIES 

Ginger Delegal, Executive Director of the Florida Association of Counties, introduced herself and gave the Board 
her background in local government. Mrs. Delegal gave an overview of local governments, comparing and 
contrasting counties, municipalities and special districts, and the structure of county government. She explained 
that each county should structure itself based on its culture, population and demographics, and what works for 
one county may not wor,k for another. She explained that the basic requirements for meetings, and stressed that 
all meetinfs sh�uld alloV:, the public the right to be heard. 

The commissioners thanked Mrs. Delegal for coming. 

Board members inquired about the planning and zoning issues that were tabled on February 20, 2023, and it was 
agreed that the Board Secretary would reach out to sched,ule a meeting. 

Mr. Williams,brought to the Board's attention that the Suwannee River Water Management District is making 
changes tp the floodplain maps, and that it is severely impacting many homeowners that may not be aware. He 
stated that the SRWMD is willing to meet with citizens, if scheduled and published by the Board. The Board agreed 
for Mr. Williams to schedule such � meeting. Commissioner Johns asked Mrs. Delegal if she had any advice, and 
she answered that Eric Poole, staff bt FAC, would be helpful in the matter, and acknowledged that statewide, the 
issue is messy. 

Chairman Perez adjourned the workshop at 6:32 pm. 

APPROVED: 

Ryan Perez, Chair 

ATTEST: 

Kellie Hendricks Rhoades, Clerk & Comptroller 

Page 1 of 1 



PURCHASING AND 
PROCYREMENT POLICY 

T 

1 MARCH 20, 2023 
UNION doUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

15 NE 1st St., Lake Butler, FL 32054 



Index 

INDEX ................................................................................................................. . 

��:��;�E�·ANoioR·r�ocu·REMENT· ·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·. ·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·. ·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·.·_-:
• PURCHASE ORDERS ................................................................................ . 
• PAYMNET VOUCHERS ............................................................................. . 
• VENDOR SELECTION .............................................................................. . 

o PURCHASES LESS THAN $5,000 .................................................. . 

d ��:��:��� �;ci5Eg��c; i��:���-R
.
EQu.iRi

.
NG 

.. 
sEALEo .. sios·.·.·.·_-

• BID SPECIFfCATIONS AND ADVERTISEMENT ................ .. 
• RFP ,f\ND RFQ SPECIFICATIONS ........................... . 
• 255.0525 Florida Statutes ..................................... . 

• PRE-BIDDING PROCEDURES ............................................ . 
• BID OPENING .................................................................... . 
• RECOMMENDATION AND BID AWARDING ..................... .. 
• POST-AWARD PROCEDURES ............................................ . 
• OTHER BID CONDITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS ............ . 
• BID PROTEST PROCEDURES ............................................ . 
• EXEMPT PURCHASES (NO BID REQUIRED) .................... .. 

• LEASE/PURCHASE AGREEMENT OR CONTRACT ................................... .. 
• PRO�ERTY INVENTORY .......................................................................... . 
• LOAN INTEREST RATES .......................................................................... . 
• CREDIT CARD POLICY ............................................................................ . 
• FUEL CARD POLICY ................................................................................ . 
• PAYMENT OF INVOICES ........................................................................ .. 
• PERSONAL GAIN ..................................................................................... . 

SALES AND1 RECEIPTING ................................................................................... .
• SURPLUS SALES ...................................................................................... . 
• CASH RECEIPTING POLICY PROCEDURES ............................................. . 
• CREDIT CARD RECEIPTI�G POLICY PROCEDURES .............................. .. 

REIMBURSEMENTS ............................................................................................ . 
• TRAVEL POLICY ...................................................................................... . 
• CELL/MOBILE PHONE REIMBURSEMENT ............................................... . 

RESOLUTIONS ................................................................................................... . 

Pg. 01 
Pg. 02 
Pg. 02 

Pg. 02 
Pg. 03 
Pg. 03 
Pg. 03 
Pg. 03 
Pg. 04 
Pg. 04 
Pg. 04 
Pg. 04 
Pg. 05 
Pg. 05 
Pg. 05 
Pg. 06 
Pg. 06 
Pg. 06 
Pg. 07 
Pg. 08 
Pg. 08 
Pg. 08 
Pg. 08 
Pg. 09 
Pg. 10 
Pg. 10 
Pg. 10 
Pg. 10 
Pg. 11 
Pg. 11

Pg. 11 
Pg. 11 
Pg. 12

Pg. 13 

1 
































































